UNITED NATIONS E



ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL

Distr. LIMITED E/ESCWA/SDPD/2017/WG.5/Report 22 December 2017 ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

Economic and Social Commission for Western Asia (ESCWA)

Report

Expert Group Meeting on the Tracking Progress towards Sustainable Energy- Horizon 2030 in the Arab Region Egypt, Cairo 14-15 May 2017

Summary

Within the context of its work on sustainable energy, the United Nations Economic and Social Commission for Western Asia (UN-ESCWA) organized an Expert Group meeting (EGM) on "Tracking progress toward the sustainable energy - Horizon 2030 in the Arab region" during 14th to 15th May, 2017 at the Semiramis Intercontinental Hotel, Cairo, Egypt. This EGM falls under the strategic framework of UN-ESCWA on strengthening the capacity of UN-ESCWA Member States on mainstreaming the energy-related SDGs and Paris Agreement into their national development plans and help them to demonstrate progress, develop, implement, and monitor fact-based sustainable energy action plans.

The participants of the EGM included the members of the Energy Committee, energy experts as well as representatives from regional/international organizations. This EGM gave an opportunity to participants to update the panel on the accomplishments of their relative countries in terms of energy sustainability, climate change and energy policy.

Based on the Agenda of the meeting, participants discussed the subject thought 4 sessions: 1) Tracking progress towards sustainable energy in the Arab region, 2) Updates from international organizations on energy related activities, 3) Energy policy challenges and lessons learned, 4) Country update on energy policies and progress toward sustainable energy.

Note: This document has been reproduced in the form in which it was received, without formal editing.

CONTENTS

	Page
Introduction	3 3
Main Topics of Discussions	
A. Tracking progress towards sustainable energy in the Arab region	3
B. Updates from international organizations on energy related activities	4
C. Energy policy challenges and lessons learned, including panel discussion	5
D. Country update on energy policies and progress toward sustainable energy	6
Organization of Work	_
A. Venue and Date	7
B. Opening	7
C. Participants	7
D. Agenda	7
E. Evaluation	7
Annex (A): Agenda	9
Annex (B): List of Participants	11

Introduction

- 1. The 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development (SD) requires countries to pursue concerted and accelerated action on sustainable energy in their national programmes in order to reconcile the growing need for energy services with mitigating the impacts of energy resource development and use. This situation calls for profound and immediate changes in how energy is produced and consumed. In this context, the "Global Tracking Framework-GTF" report in the Arab region has been prepared in 2017 for the first time by the UN-ESCWA with support of the World Bank and SE4ALL.
- 2. The present EGM aimed at exploring the progress of the region's sustainable energy efforts in line with the 2030 Agenda for SD and how governments understand key elements of sustainable energy and potential action forward and share their view and approach towards a sustainable energy future, with highlighting the challenges and success factors at country level.
- 3. The objectives of the EGM are to: 1) Identify differences and similarities between countries' approaches and understandings of sustainable energy today and in the future, 2) Recognize key milestones, major uncertainties and risks in the region for achieving sustainable energy future in 2030 and beyond, 3) Collect ideas to support achievement of sustainable energy in 2030 and beyond, 4) Increase alignment of Member States' national plans with the energy SDGs, particularly goal 7. To achieve these objectives, the discussions during EGM focused on: a) Gaps between policies set today and the future targets for a sustainable energy, b) The role of Energy Efficiency (EE) and low-carbon energy resources in future energy mix, c) Nexus between energy and other areas such as water, food and climate, d) Brainstorm on the policy options to lead a sustainable energy pathway, 5) Highlight the major trends in terms of Energy Access, RE and EE.

Main Topics of Discussions

The Meeting was structured to include presentations/interventions and discussions according to the substantive sessions as follows (Agenda is attached in Annex-A):

A. Tracking progress towards sustainable energy in the Arab region

- 4. This session included a key presentation on "Tracking Progress Toward Sustainable Energy: Major Trends for the Arab Countries", which started by overviewing the Global Tracking Framework (GTF) methodology, and Sustainable Energy For All (SE4ALL) initiative. The presentation overviewed the three GTF biennium reports "2013, 2015 and 2017". The 2017 report will "for the first time" publish regional track specific progress. In the context of Arab region tracks progress, the presentation overviewed regional data pertaining to energy consumption, energy access, energy efficiency and renewable energy "mainly wind and solar". The presentation raised important concerns, including:
 - In Arab region, the growth of energy consumption (more than doubled in 2014 compared with 1990), population, industrialization and rising living standards will escalate the energy demand with high rates in the future.
 - The energy related challenges in the Arab region (e.g. energy, water and food security; high rates of urbanization; climate change vulnerabilities; wide-range national development; unequal access to energy and natural resources) require multi-dispensary and integrated strategies at the national and regional level.
 - Cooperative and intensive EE efforts along the entire energy system (from production to end users) is required to enhance energy intensity.
 - Overcoming the cost, technology and market barriers is needed to increase the share of RE in the Arab countries' energy mix.

- The policymakers have a crucial role in transition to sustainable energy systems over the coming years.
- 5. After the presentation, the participants raised some points, among these: the importance of updating the data beyond 2014 and significant ESCWA/ IRENA cooperation in this concern the necessity of integrated technology in the energy field for enhancing energy access the importance of reducing/re-directing energy subsidies in pushing EE and RE activities the importance of awareness in pushing EE projects the effective role of IRENA in providing data to support national RE plans and strategies the development of local RE equipment manufacturing the importance of regulations and initiatives in supporting EE and RE.

B. Updates from International Organizations on Energy Related Activities

- 6. The "African Energy Information System (AEIS) & Database" have been discussed. The AEIS five (5) databases on energy statistics EE, RE, energy infrastructure and energy-related socioeconomic were overviewed along with other world energy information systems and databases (EIA, OECD/IEA, OPEC/OAPEC, APEC and OLADE) and primary & secondary sources of energy data. At the end, the presentation summarized training activities during 2011-2016 and overviewed AFREC publications. It is concluded that African countries have good data systems, but the lack of financing is the main barrier against up-grading this data system. The participants wished to set a practical methodology within common understanding of all partners for getting credible data and to establish an Arab database for energy.
- 7. A presentation entitled "Renewable Energy and the Arab Region" presented important issues related to RE, including: 1) cost of electricity generation by RE compared to fossil fuel, 2) price trends of solar PV and onshore wind in selected countries during 2010 and 2016, 3) annual investments in RE during 2014 and 2015 in different regions of the world, 4) annual renewable and non-renewable new capacity additions, 5) RE installed capacity in the Arab region, 6) targets in the global RE landscape, 7) RE potential and developments in the Arab world, 8) renewable energy auctions, 9) IRENA's engagements in the Arab region, 10) benefits of RE transition, 11) RE manufacturing potential in the Arab region, 12) IRENA's project support.

The presentation concluded that:

- Solar PV and onshore wind recorded major reduction in generation cost (about 80% during 2010 and 2016), and the price of solar PV and onshore trend decreases along the years
- Remarkable high investment in RE in 2016 was recorded
- Added renewable power capacity has exceeded non-renewables for the last 5 years (RE produced in 2015 represented 5.87 % of the total generation capacity in the region)
- Today, 173 countries have at least one type of RE target up from 43 in 2005
- In 2016, USD 11 billion were invested in renewables across the Arab region compared to USD
 1.2 billion in 2008
- RE benefits by 2030 could be 1.1% growth in GDP, 24 million generated jobs and 3% increase in welfare
- Over 20 projects were selected by the Abu Dhabi Fund for Development "ADFD" and approved for funding.
- 8. The last presentation in this session was entitled "Energy Analyst/OAPEC"; and it overviewed the efforts and activities of OAPEC countries on sustainable energy, with focus on opportunities and challenges. The presentation provided a brief on key energy indicators in the OAPEC member countries and their position in global energy markets and discussed the opportunities and challenges against transition to sustainable energy path through 2030 Sustainable Development agenda, especially goals 7 and 13. The presentation raised some concerns, including the following:
 - OAPEC member states recorded the highest annual growth rate for total primary energy consumption (4.7%) compared with other regions during the period 1980-2015
 - In 2015, oil and gas represented 98.8% of total energy consumption with a declining contribution from coal, nuclear and renewable energies (1.2%, compared to 47% in the global mix)

- There is a balance dilemma between ensuring stable supply of global energy markets and maximizing the benefit with optimal use of available resources
- The main challenge is how to shift to a new and sustainable energy path; and how to assess the political, economic, social and environmental costs of this shift
- The importance of technologies and policies, in particular those related to cleaner fossil fuels, such as RE, EE and carbon capture and storage
- 9. At the end of this session, Ms. Radia Sedaoui (Energy Section Chief/ SDPD/ESCWA) mentioned that OAPEC is considered a strategic partner with ESCWA in activities related to cleaner fossil fuels, and Mr. Mongi Bida (Energy Section/SDPD/ESCWA) pointed to the importance of clarifying the calculation methodology of RE contribution to the energy mix at the national level.

C. Energy Policy Challenges and Lessons Learned

- 10. This session started by a presentation on "Energy Policy Challenges in the Arab Region" which focused on challenges related to domestic energy situation and domestic electrical energy consumption. In the Arab region, EE represents the most appropriate tool for demand-side management, while RE can provide an important contribution to the energy supply. It is stated that, the main sustainable energy challenges in Arab Countries are: low energy cost lack of adequate policies & regulatory frameworks weak institutional coordination and lack of suitable human and financial resources. Some concerns have been raised during the presentation, among these:
 - Given the available potential in the Arab region, are EE & RE plans and targets sufficiently ambitious?
 - Are the existing policies and institutional frameworks capable of providing the enabling conditions to benefit from EE & RE potential and meet EE & RE targets?
 - What are the issues that are needed to engage the different stakeholders into developing the enabling conditions?
 - Who are the main stakeholders and their responsibilities?
 - What are the urgent steps needed to be taken by Arab governments to adopt a proactive approach for developing more sustainable energy systems?
- 11. This session included a panel discussion; three key guiding questions were proposed for discussion during this panel: 1) Are the existing policies and institutional frameworks capable of providing the enabling conditions to tap into this potential and meet these targets? 2) What are the urgent steps that need to be taken by Arab governments to adopt a proactive approach for developing more sustainable energy systems? 3) How can Arab countries integrate the energy related sustainable development goals (SDGs) and associated targets, particularly SDG7, into their socio-economic development plans and what kind of monitoring mechanisms are required? According to the Agenda, the panel discussion included five (5) interventions. The critical points and concerns raised during the panel are as follows:
 - Supporting the so called "integrated sustainability", which should include proper policies and planning of various energy resources, with focus on 1) enhancing energy pricing and energy subsidies since low energy prices are the main reason behind the non-sustainable energy use, 2) promoting the diversification of energy resources with a priority to RE, 3) liberalizing the energy markets and reducing the dependence on governments while enhancing regulations to support the private sector and investors, 4) achieving transparency and providing intensive awareness, particularly for energy users, 5) linking between scientific research and energy issues.
 - Enhancing the legislative framework of and addressing the barriers against RE and EE with a focus on financing, energy subsidies, regulations & institutional barriers. As well as providing great and integrated efforts for improving EE among energy systems considering the ultimate challenge is "Creating jobs for youth". The decent experiences and best practices existing in the Arab region should be used to enhance energy systems.

- Given the Yemeni crises, it is stated "development of electricity systems is a condition for development of the entire life in Yemen". Since the energy sector faces shortage in fuel and electricity supply and damage in electricity network, it is advised to use solar energy and diesel generators to cover this shortage. In this context, it is important to develop/up-grade the "energy monitoring system" which has been established to evaluate energy systems and provide the appropriate energy alternatives.
- Based on the Arab Future Energy Index (AFEX) report and in the context of the Arab Renewable Energy Strategy (2013-2030), it was noted that Arab countries are undergoing a radical change in sustainable and low-carbon energy investments as means to meet the challenges and to build the capacities for development. So it is important to prioritize and aim the efforts in this concern.
- The development of energy policies, programmes, plans and ambitious objectives are not matched with the development of institutional systems in the Arab countries. Therefore, it is urgent to develop institutional and regulatory frames to meet the requirements of sustainable energy in the Arab countries; as well as to enhance regional integration for developing a powerful unified energy market in the region.
- 12. At the end of this session, participants raised some comments, as follows:
 - Jordon: Importance of developing a research plan; encourage the cooperation among institutions at the national level; remove energy subsidy.
 - Syria: Direct energy subsidies caused an improper housing development; the importance of green building; the significant role of institutional frameworks in setting energy policies and coordination between various sectors; the importance of involving all partners, particularly the private and public sectors.
 - Ms. Anhar Hegazi: The matter is not only issuing the regulations but also implementing them; sustainable development is not only regulations but also a national mental state and needs education and awareness; information and experience exchange among countries are important.
 - Mr. Ibrahim Abdel Gelil: the development of a regulatory body is important for private sector participation.
 - Mr. Mongi Bida: political support is important, as well as ethical issues

D. Country update on energy policies and progress toward sustainable energy

- 13. <u>Jordan</u>: The Jordanian government aims at maximizing and diversifying local energy resources, maximizing RE applications, enhancing regional electric networks interconnection and the introduction of nuclear energy. Jordan built a maritime port and a Floating Storage and Regasification Unit (FSRU) in Aqaba to supply fuel to 92% of the power stations. Jordan also implemented RE projects using different schemes including direct proposals, Engineering Procurement & Construction (EPC), and net metering schemes with currently installed capacity reaching 400 MW.
- 14. <u>Lebanon</u>: There is no problem in electricity access in Lebanon as the grid covers the Lebanese territory, but the problem lies in "generation capacity shortages", where local diesel generators are used to cover these shortages; subsidized electricity is a major barrier in Lebanon. To enhance EE and support RE, Lebanon prepared its National Energy Efficiency Action-NEEAP 2010-2015 and National Renewable Energy Action Plan -NREAP.
- 15. Palestinian: In 1995, the Palestinian Energy and Natural Resources Authority/PENRA was established to manage the energy sector and supervise energy institutions. Power shortages are due to the limited power purchased from Jordan and Egypt, the high cost of power imported via Israel and the limited domestic power generation high technical & non-technical losses. The objective of the Palestinian strategy for energy independence 2017-2022, are: Improving the national power production and better exploit national recourses; increasing RE recourses; improving EE through increasing awareness and reducing losses; increasing energy security through diversification of import resources and reforming institution frames.

- 16. **Syria**: The Syrian crisis has negatively affected the electricity sector from different angles (fuel supply, generation, transmission, distribution, demand, human resources and financial capabilities). The main challenges facing the electricity sector are fuel shortages, terrorist attacks and financial losses. In preparation for the post-crisis, and to encourage private investments in the power sector including RE, Syria adopted appropriate laws and regulations. Currently ESCWA is providing technical support to rehabilitate the Syrian electricity sector.
- 17. Iraq: In 2008, short and long-term (2020 and 2030) plans for energy were stablished but the integration between different ministries is crucial to implement these plans. There is a necessity for evaluating the electricity sector; however, in the meantime, power plants have been modified to operate using alternative fuel (which are produced from crude oil) which have reduced the fuel cost. There is a plan to convert 17 power plants from gas turbine to combined cycle (Al-Amarh-Khor Al Zubair AL-Sadr 1 AL-Sadr 2 AL-Quds Al- Najaf Al- Hillah Karbala Al Haydariyah 1 Al- Diwaniyah South Baghdad 1 Al- Mansuriya Al- Mansuriya Dibis Okaz Al- Qayyarah Baiji), a considerable capacity (MW) is expected to be added due to this conversion. Furthermore, 955 MW is expected to be available in future due to implementing 15 solar PV projects in Iraq.

Organization of Work

A. Venue and Date

The Expert Group Meeting on "Tracking Progress towards Sustainable Energy- Horizon 2030 in the ArabRegion" was organized at the Semiramis Intercontinental Hotel, Cairo, Egypt from the 14th to 15th May, 2017.

B. Opening

1. The meeting was formally opened and welcomed by Ms. Roula Majdalani, Director of Sustainable Development Policies Division (SDPD), UN-ESCWA and Ms. Radia Sedaoui, Chief of the Energy Section, SDPD, UN-ESCWA. The Agenda of the meeting was briefed by Ms. Bothayna Rashed, Economic Affairs Officer, Energy Section, SDPD, UN-ESCWA.

C. Participants

2. The workshop was attended by about 40 participants (see Annex-B), gathered members of the ESCWA Committee on Energy, energy experts as well as representatives from regional/international organizations.

D. Agenda

- 3. Presentations and discussions were made over the below four sessions (as indicated in Agenda Annex-A).
 - Tracking progress towards sustainable energy in the Arab region
 - Updates from international organizations on energy related activities
 - Energy policy challenges and lessons learned, including panel discussion
 - Country update on energy policies and progress toward sustainable energy

E. Evaluation

4. An evaluation questionnaire was distributed to assess the relevance, effectiveness and impact of the meeting. A total of 23 participants responded to the questionnaire; all of them (100 per cent) provided good to excellent rating for the overall quality of the EGM, the clarity of the meeting objectives, allocated

time of each session and the quality of panel contributions. 90 per cent agreed that the EGM met its objectives with a rating of good to excellent while 95 per cent rated the quality of presentations as good to excellent and believed that the meeting contributed to building relations with stakeholders in the field of advanced green technologies through science-policy interface. Moreover, 95 per cent saw a need for follow-up action(s) on the results of the meeting. The participants also raised some points in the evaluation questionnaire, e.g.: the importance of follow up, facing the obstacles, monitoring the results, disseminating successful stories and experiences among Arab countries through the ESCWA Energy Committee or any other designated body within ESCWA, providing more discussions and assistance in the fields of water, energy and food nexuses, encouraging private investments in electricity networks, the importance of the communication and coordination and tracking progress achieved at the national level, providing the documents/presentation of the meeting early, increasing the time allocated to cover the different issues of the subject.

Annex (A): Agenda of the Meeting

UNITED NATIONS





ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COMISSION FOR WESTERN ASIA (ESCWA)

Expert Group Meeting: "Tracking progress toward the implementation of energy related SDGs in the Arab region", 14-15 May 2017- Cairo, Egypt

DAY 1: Tuesday, 14 May 2017 from 16:00 till 18:00		
16:00 - 16:30	REGISTRATION	
16:30 - 16:45	OPENING SESSION AND INTRODUCTION	
	MODERATOR: Ms. Radia Sedaoui, Chief Energy Section, Sustainable Development Policies Division (SDPD)-ESCWA	
	WELCOMING REMARKS:	
	Ms. Roula Majdalani. Director Sustainable Development Policies Division SDPD-ESCWA	

Tour de Table (10 min.)

- 16:45 16:50 SETTING THE CONTEXT: AGENDA & EXPECTED OUTCOMES FROM THE EGM Ms. Bothayna Rashed, Economic Affairs Officer, Energy Section, SDPD-ESCWA
- 16:50 17:20 SESSION 1: TRACKING PROGRESS TOWARDS SUSTAINABLE ENERGY IN THE ARAB REGION MODERATOR: Mr. Taoufik Laabi, Energy Expert, Morocco
- 16:50 17:10 TRACKING PROGRESS TOWARD SUSTAINABLE ENERGY: MAJOR TRENDS FOR THE ARAB COUNTRIES Ms. Radia Sedaoui, Chief Energy Section, SDPD-ESCWA
- 17:10-17:20 Q&A and Discussion
- 17:20 18:00 SESSION 2: UPDATE FROM INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS ON ENERGY RELATED ACTIVITIES MODERATOR: Dr. Ibrahim Abdel Gelil Abdalla, Adjunct Prof. Arabian Gulf University, Consultant, Energy and Environment
- 17:20 17:30 PRESENTATION FROM AFREC Mr. Atef Marzouq, Interim Executive Director, African Energy Commission (AFREC)
- 17:30 17:40 PRESENTATION FROM IRENA Mr. Gurbuz Gunul, Senior Programme Officer-Region, IRENA
- 17:40 17:50 PRESENTATION FROM OAPEC Mr. ElTaher A Sghir Elzitoni, Energy Analyst, OAPEC
- 17:50 17:55 Q&A and Discussion
- 17:55 18:00 FIRST DAY WRAP UP

UNITED NATIONS E

DAY 2: Monday, 15 May 2017 from 14:30 till 18:00 14:30 – 15:30 SESSION 3: ENERGY POLICY CHALLENGES AND LESSONS LEARNED MODERATOR: Mr. Malek Kabariti, Former Minister, Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources, Jordan 14:30 – 14:50 ENERGY POLICY CHALLENGES IN THE ARAB REGION M. M. Mongi Bida, First Economic Officer Energy Section, SDPD – ESCWA

14:50 - 15:30 PANEL DISUCUSSION

Key guiding questions for discussion:

- Are the existing policies and institutional frameworks capable of providing the enabling conditions to tap into this potential and meet these targets?
- What are the urgent steps that need to be taken by Arab governments to adopt a proactive approach for developing more sustainable energy systems?
- How can Arab countries integrate the energy related sustainable development goals (SDGs) and associated targets, particularly SDG7, into their socio-economic development plans and what kind of monitoring mechanisms are required?

PANELISTS

- Ms. Anhar Hegazi, Counselor to the Minister of State for Environment Affairs, Egypt
- Mr. Mohamed El Haouari, Director of RE & EE Dept., National agency for RE & EE, Morocco
- Ms. Kawther Lihidheb, International Energy Specialist, ECONOLER, Tunisia
- Mr. Hamed Abdo Ahmed Al Hammadi, Director of Environment Statistics and Sustainable Development, Central Statistical Organization, Yemen
- Hussain Jaffar Abdulla Makki Ali, Director of studies and International Relations Department, NOGA-National Oil and Gas Authority, Bahrain

15:30 - 15:45 COFFEE BREAK

15:45-17:20 SESSION 4: COUNTRY UPDATE ON ENERGY POLICIES

AND PROGRESS TOWARD SUSTSINABLE ENERGY

MODERATOR: Dr. Mohammed EL-Khayat, Vice Chairman for Studies, Research, and Technical Affairs, New & Renewable Energy Authority (NREA), Egypt

- Mr. Mustafa Mohammad Mustafa Khatib, Director of Electricity Department, Ministry of Energy and Minerals Resources, Jordan
- · Ms. Aurore Feghaly, General Director of Oil, Ministry of Energy & Water, Lebanon
- Mr. Ayman Fouad Ismail. General Manager, Palestinian Energy and natural Resources Authority, Palestine
- Mr. Nedal Karamoucheh, Minister's Assistant, Ministry of Electricity, Syria
- Others ... (TBC)

17:20 - 17:50 Q&A and Discussion

17:50-18:00 Wrap-up and Concluding Remark

Annex (B): List of participants

Bahrain

Mr. Hussain Jaffar Abdulla Makki Ali

Advisor

National Oil and Gas Authority (NOGA)

P.O. Box: 1435 Bahrain Phone: + 973 17312677 Mob: + 973 39744114 Fax: + 973 17291925 E-mail: h.makki@noga.gov.bh

Egypt

Ms. Taghrid Said El Ayouti

General Manager of Technical Follow-up Ministry of Electricity and Renewable Energy

Tel: + 20222616523 Mob: + 01007777120

E-mail: Taghreedsaeed123@gmail.com

Mr. Mohamed S. Wehba

Deputy Chairman of the Regional Training Sector for Water Resources and Irrigation Ministry of Irrigation and Water Resources

Tel: + 0020244464505 Mob: + 00201003965239 E-mail: mswahba@hotmail.com

Mr. Mohammed Mostafa El-Khayat

Vice Chairman for studies, Research, & Technical Affairs

Ministry of Electricity & Renewable Energy, New and Renewable Energy Authority

Tel: + 02 227 13 174

Mob: + 0122 80 90 810

E-mail: t.vicechair@nrea.gov.eg
mohamed.elkhayat@yahoo.com

Egypt

Mr. Maged Safwat Sadek

Senior Engineer
Technology follow-up of

Technology follow-up department Ministry of Electricity and Renewable

Energy

Tel: + 012 77366185 Mob: + 02 22616518 E-mail: ma mssm@yahoo.com

Egypt (Continued)

Ms. Anhar Hegazi

Director

Energy & Green Development

Consultants in Energy, Environment &

Productivity

Tel: + 2012 2956920 Mob: + 201 222956920

E-mail: anharhegazi@gmail.com

<u>Iraq</u>

Mr. Abdulbasit Saadoon Hamid

Chief Engineer assistant Ministry of Electricity Mob: +964 7709723160 Mob: +964 7901921744

E-mail: masatech2001@yahoo.com

Mr. Hashim Al-Shididi

Ministry Officer Manager Ministry of Electricity Mob: +7901116259

E-mail: nec iraq@yahoo.com

Jordan

Mr. Mustafa Mohammad Mustafa Khatib

Director of Electricity Department Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources P.O Box 140027

Tel: + 962 6 580 30 60 Mob: + 962 796768747 Fax: + 962 6 5 865 714 E-mail: mustafak@memr.gov.jo

Mr. Malek Kabariti

Former Minister

Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources

Tel: + 962 65928866 Mob: + 962 799050080

E-mail: malek.kabariti@gmail.com

Lebanon

Ms. Aurore Feghaly

General Director of oil

Ministry of Energy & Water Beirut, Lebanon

Tel: +961 01 280970 Mob: +961 03 183335 Fax: +961 01 280969

Email: aurore.feghaly@gmail.com

Mr. Ibrahim Abdel Gelil

AFED Senior Advisor

Arab Forum for Environment and Development

Tel: +961 1 321800 E-mail: iagelil@yahoo.com info@afedonline.org

Libya

Mr. Hamid H. M. Sherwali

Chairperson of Board of Renewable Energies Renewable Energy Authority of Libya Tripoli, Libya

Tel: + 0912204637

Cell: + 0213409954 - 021340997

Fax: + 0213408602 E-mail: h.sherwali@uot.edu.ly hsherwa@hotmail.com

Oman

Mr. Ali Hamed Abed Al-Ghafri

Assistant Chairman for International Relations and Conference

Public Authority for Electricity and Water

P.O. Box: 106

Mob: + 968 99348938 Fax: + 968 24613245

E-mail: ali.ghafri@paew.gov.om

Palestine

Mr. Ayman Fouad Ismail

General Manager of PEC

Palestinian Energy and natural Resources

Authority

Ramallah, Palestine Tel: +972 22986190 Mob: +972 599202678 Fax +972 22986191 Email: aismail@menr.org

aymanismail1967@gmail.com

Qatar

Ms. Alanoud Al-Meghaisib

Economist Expert

Ministry of Energy and Industry

Tel: + 974 4486476 Mob: + 97455114119

E-mail: a almeghaisib@qp.com.qa

Sudan

Mr. Adel Ali Ibrahim

General Director of Policy and Planning Ministry of Water Resources Irrigation and

Electricity P.o.B: 7206

Tel: + 249 183771951 Mob: + 249 912309434 E-mail: adilali56@hotmail.com

Syrian Arab Republic

Mr. Nedal Karmoucheh

Assistant Minister
Ministry of Electricity
Tel: + 963 2143655
Mob: + 963 0940230968
Fax: + 963 2133954
E-mail: karshned@yahoo.com

Tunis

Ms. Kawther Lihidheb

Senior International Specialist ECONOLER

Tel: + 14186922592 (4330) Mob: + 21698664984 E-mail: klihidhebeconoler.com

Mauritania

Mr. Mohamed Ould Yarguett

Conseiller Technique du Ministre, Chargé de l'Electricité au Ministère du Pétrole, de L'Energie et des

Mines

Mob: +222 46 40 19 20- 222 36 63 42 16

+222 22 63 42 16

E-mail: mdyarguett@gmail.com

Morocco

Mr. Mohamed El Haouari

Director of Energy Efficiency Agence Marocaine pour Efficacite Energetique Amee

Tel: + 212 661842533 Mob: + 212 661842533 Fax: + 212 537717929 E-mail: m.elhaouari@amee.ma

Mr. Taoufik Laabi

Energy Expert

Tel: + 212 5 226684 76 Mob: + 212 6 61 19 9710 E-mail: laabitaoufik3@gmail.com

<u>Yemen</u>

Mr. Abdullah Ahmad Hagar

Executive Managing Director Ministry of Electricity & Energy Public Authority for Rural Electrification Sana'a

PoB: 11422 Sana'a Mob: +967 773859400 E-mail: hag 1958@yahoo.com

Mr. Hamed Abdo Ahmed Al-Hammadi

Director of Environment Statistics and Sustainable Development National Focal point and national focal point for environment and sustainable development indicators

Member of the Arab Group on these indicators- Central statistical organization

Mob: +967777962071

E-mail: hammadi 62@yahoo.com

Yemen (Continued)

Mr. Ameen Mohammed Qaid Al-Hammadi

Manager of Monitoring evaluatio nand Planning sustainable Development Environment production Authority

Tel: + 967 207818 Mob: + 967 7773747026

E-mail: alhmadi albory@yahoo.com

IRENA

Mr. Gurbuz Gonul

Senior Programme Officer-Region International Renewable Energy Agency IRENA

United Arab Emirate
Tel: +971 124179925

Mob: + 971 504436505 E-mail: GGonul@irena.org

Ms. Lara Younes

Associate Professional – MENA Engagement International Renewable Energy Agency IRENA

Tel: +97156688375 E-mail: lyounes@irena.org

Mr. Nicholas Wagner

Associate Programme Officer Renewable Energy Roadmaps IRENA Innovation and Technology Center

Tel: + 49 228 3917-9089 Mob: + 49 172 180 0604 E-mail: nwagner@irena.com

LAS

Ms. Jamila Matar

Director, Energy Department League of Arab States 1 Tahreer Square - Cairo Tel: +202- 25750511- Ext. 3660

Fax: +202- 25740331 E-mail: jamila.matar@las.int

OAPEC

Mr. Eltaher Elzitoni

Energy Analyst

Organization of Arab Petroleum Exporting

Countries

Tel: + 965 24959759 Mob: + 965 99814051 Fax: + 965 24959755

E-mail: e.elzitoni@oapecorg.org

AFREC

Mr. Atef Marzouk

Interim Executive Director Algeria

AFREC-Africa Energy Commission Tel: +213 216 948 68

Tel: + 213 216 948 68 Mob: + 213 661 681 576

E-mail: marzouka@africa-union.org

RECREEE

Mr. Maged K. Mahmoud

Technical Director

RCREEE

Tel: + 20224154755 Ext: 231

Mob: + 201005269400 Fax: + 2024154661

E-mail: maged.mahmoud@rcreee.org

Mr. Hussam Alherafi

Senior Specialist Policy analysis

Tel: + 20224154755 Mob: + 201156676711 Fax: + 20224154661

Email: hossam.alherafi@rcreee.org

ESCWA STAFF

Ms. Roula Majdalani

Director

Sustainable Development Policies Division (SDPD)

ESCWA

United Nations House, Riad El-Solh Square,

Beirut, Lebanon

+ 961 1 978502 (Direct) Tel: Fax: +961 1 981510/1/2 Email: majdalani@un.org

Ms. Radia Sedaoui

Chief, Energy Section

Sustainable Development Policies Division (SDPD)

ESCWA

United Nations House, Riad El-Solh Square,

Beirut, Lebanon

Tel.: +961 1 978527 (Direct) +961 1 981510/1/2 Fax: Email: sedaoui@un.org

Mr. Ziad Jaber

Regional Advisor/Energy Secion

Sustainable Development Policies Division (SDPD)

ESCWA

United Nations House, Riad El-Solh Square,

Beirut, Lebanon

Tel.: + 961 1 978507 (Direct) + 961 1 981510/1/2 Fax: Email: jaberz@un.org

Mr. Mongi Bida

First Economic Affairs Officer, Energy Section / Energy Section

Sustainable Development Policies Division (SDPD)

ESCWA

United Nations House, Riad El-Solh Square,

Beirut, Lebanon

+ 961 1 978526 (Direct) Tel: +961 1 981510/1/2 Fax:

Email: bida@un.org

Ms. Bothayna Rashed

Economic Affairs Officer, Energy Section /

Energy Section

Sustainable Development Policies Division

(SDPD) **ESCWA**

United Nations House, Riad El-Solh Square,

Beirut, Lebanon

+ 961 1 978571 (Direct) Tel: + 961 1 981510/1/2 Fax: Email: rashed@un.org

Mr. Salah Kandil

Economic Affairs Officer, Energy Section /

Energy Section

Sustainable Development Policies Division

(SDPD) - ESCWA

United Nations House, Riad El-Solh Square,

Beirut, Lebanon

+ 961 1 978562 (Direct) Tel: +961 1 981510/1/2 Fax: Email: kandil1@un.org

Ms. Julie Abou Arab

Programme Assistant

Sustainable Development Policies Division (SDPD)

ESCWA

United Nations House, Riad El-Solh Square,

Beirut, Lebanon

Tel: + 961 1 978561 (Direct) +961 1 981510/1/2 Fax: Email: abouarab@un.org

Ms. Noha Ziade

Administrative Assistant / Energy Section

Sustainable Development Policies Division (SDPD)

ESCWA

United Nations House, Riad El-Solh Square,

Beirut, Lebanon

Tel: + 961 1 978530 (Direct) +961 1 981510/1/2 Fax:

Email: ziaden@un.org